
 
 

 
 

TOWN CENTRE AND MAJOR 
PROJECTS PANEL  

 
TUESDAY 30 JANUARY 2007 

7.30 PM  
PANEL AGENDA (ADVISORY) 

 
COMMITTEE ROOM 6        

HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Marilyn Ashton 

 
Councillors: 

 
David Ashton 
Susan Hall  
Chris Mote 
 

Phillip O'Dell 
Navin Shah 
 

  
 

Advisers (non-voting): Mr Abe Hayeem, Canons Park Residents' Association 
(Vacancy), Harrow Heritage Trust 
Mr John Palmer, Harrow Agenda 21 
Mr A Wood, Harrow, Public Transport Users' Association 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Miss Christine Bednell 
2. Eric Silver 
3. Janet Mote 
 

1. Bill Stephenson 
2. Mrs Margaret Davine 
3. - 
 

  

 
Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 

Legal Services Department  
 
Contact:  Daksha Ghelani, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1881    E-mail:  daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 

 
NOTE FOR THOSE ATTENDING THE MEETING: 

IF YOU WISH TO DISPOSE OF THIS AGENDA, PLEASE LEAVE IT BEHIND AFTER THE MEETING.  
IT WILL BE COLLECTED FOR RECYCLING. 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
TOWN CENTRE AND MAJOR PROJECTS PANEL  
 
TUESDAY 30 JANUARY 2007 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that 

the Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives 

after the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member 
can only act as a Member from the start of the next item of business 
on the agenda after his/her arrival. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. Minutes:    
 That the minutes of the meetings of the Town Centre Project Panel held on 

1 August 2006 and 26 September 2006 (being the predecessor body to this 
Panel) be taken as read and signed as a correct record. 
 
[Note:  The minutes are published on the Council's intranet and website]. 
 

4. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended). 
 

5. Appointment of Vice-Chairman:    
 To appoint a Vice-Chairman of the Panel for the remainder of the Municipal 

Year 2006/07. 
 



 

 

6. Appointment of an Adviser:    
 To appoint Mrs Joanne Verden of the Harrow Heritage Trust as a non-voting 

adviser to the Panel in place of Mr Baj Mathur for the remainder of the 
Municipal Year 2006/07. 
 

7. Renaming of the Panel and revised Terms of Reference:  (Pages 1 - 2)  
 To note that the Cabinet, at its meeting held on 9 November 2006, renamed 

the Town Centre Project Panel as the Town Centre and Major Projects Panel 
and agreed the revised terms of reference attached herewith. 
 

8. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure 
Rule 13 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

9. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Advisory Panel and Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 15 
(Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

10. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Advisory Panel and 

Consultative Forum Procedure Rule 14 (Part 4E of the Constitution). 
 

  URBAN LIVING   
 

11. Public Realm Strategy:  (Pages 3 - 4)  
 Report of the Director of Planning Services (Urban Living). 

 
[There will be a presentation by Urban Initiatives on this item.] 
 

12. Priorities and Progress 2007:  (Pages 5 - 12)  
 Joint report of the Executive Director (Urban Living) and the Director of 

Planning Services (Urban Living). 
 

13. Any Other Urgent Business:    
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
  AGENDA - PART II - Nil   

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
TOWN CENTRE AND MAJOR PROJECTS PANEL 
 
The Terms of Reference and Delegated Powers of the Town Centre and Major 
Projects Project Panel are: 
 

1. To oversee the preparation and implementation of the Town Centre 
Strategy, including arrangements for consultation, subject to final approval 
of the strategy by Cabinet. 

 
2. To oversee the preparation and implementation of the master plan for the 

Harrow on the Hill Station site, including arrangements for consultation, 
subject to final approval of the master plan by the Cabinet. 

 
3. To consider and where appropriate approve proposals/development briefs 

for major projects both within and outside the Town Centre and their 
implementation, including acquisition and disposal of land, but excluding 
exercising the Council’s development control powers as Local Planning 
Authority subject to final approval by Cabinet. 

 
4. To make recommendations where appropriate on matters affecting the 

Town Centre to Local Development Framework Panel and Cabinet. 
 

5. To authorise expenditure within agreed budgets. 
 

6. To monitor and review progress on 1-5 above. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7
Pages 1 to 2

1



2

This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\4\AI00035408\PublicRealmtoProjectPanel3001070.doc 

 
Meeting: 
 

Town Centre and Major Projects Panel  

Date: 
 

30th January 2007  

Subject: 
 

Public Realm Strategy and Presentation 

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Graham Jones.  
Director of Planning Services  
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Marilyn Ashton 
Planning, Development & Enterprise 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

None  
 

 
SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
This report outlines progress on the preparation of a Public Realm Strategy for Harrow 
Town Centre and sets the scene for a presentation by Urban Initiatives.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
That the Panel consider the presentation by Urban Initiatives and comment 
accordingly.  
 
REASON:  To enable the Panel to comment on the work to date in preparing a Public 
Realm Strategy for Harrow Town Centre. 
 
 
SECTION 2 – REPORT 
 
Background 
At its meeting on 1st August 2006, the Panel agreed to recommend the Portfolio Holder 
for Planning, Development & Enterprise to confirm the appointment Urban Initiatives to 
prepare a Public Realm Strategy for Harrow Town Centre. 
 
An inception meeting was held in the 4th October with the Council’s Project Team, 
comprising representatives of the relevant service interests and chaired by the Director 
of Planning Services. Two further meetings have been held, and a series of one to one 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 3 to 4

3



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\8\0\4\AI00035408\PublicRealmtoProjectPanel3001070.doc 

discussions have taken place to consider different specialist issues, including highway 
maintenance, cleansing/waste management, lighting and CCTV. Further progress 
reports will be presented to future meetings of the Panel. 
 
This is the first opportunity to begin to engage directly with Members and Advisers to the 
Panel. Urban Initiatives have been requested to make a presentation on work to date 
and their programme for taking the work forward. 
 
 
SECTION 3 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE 
 
   
Chief Finance Officer  Name:…Anil Nagpal……. 
    

Date:.      01—12-2006. 
   
Monitoring Officer  Name: Adekundle Amisu………… 

…………………… 
   

Date: …01-12-2006……………….. 
 
 
 
SECTION 4 - CONTACT DETAILS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
Contact: 
Phil Greenwood. Senior {Professional Strategic Planning 
Tel: 02108 424 1166 

 
Background Papers:  
Harrow Town Centre Public Realm Strategy. Consultants Brief December 2005  
Report to Town Centre Panel August 2006  

 
1. Consultation  N/A 

2. Corporate Priorities  YES  

3. Manifesto Pledge Reference Number A2, F2 

 

4



 
Meeting: 
 

Town Centre and Major Projects Panel 

Date: 
 

30th January 2007 

Subject: 
 

Priorities and Progress 2007 

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Andrew Trehern Executive Director Urban Living and 
Graham Jones Director of Planning 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Marilyn Ashton Planning and Enterprise 

Exempt: 
 

no 

Enclosures: 
 

none 

 
SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
The Panel is recommended to note the report and comment on any issues which they 

consider should be taken into account in progressing the projects 
 
REASON:  
To assist progress in taking the projects forward  
 
 
SECTION 2 – REPORT 
 
The Panel’s terms of reference were amended in 2006 to include 
responsibility for advising Cabinet on major projects as well as matters in 
Harrow Town Centre. A copy of the terms of reference is attached at 
appendix 1. In general terms, the Panel will be the key member level body 
for considering development opportunities where the council wishes to 
deliver corporate and community objectives through either its property 
interests or its planning powers or a combination of both.  
 
 

Agenda Item 12
Pages 5 to 12

5



 

 

2
 
Many of the sites have a clear policy framework through the Unitary 
Development Plan and/or Supplementary Planning Guidance whereas 
others will need to be progressed through planning briefs, the planning 
application progress, or through the Local Development framework. Final 
decisions on these matters will normally rest with Cabinet, and inevitably 
many if not all will require planning permission which will be dealt with by 
the Strategic Planning Committee.  All the projects will also involve input 
from a variety of stakeholders at different stages of the process.  
 
This report sets out the range of projects currently being pursued and which 
will be reported over the coming year. The projects are of strategic 
importance and will have an impact on the Borough, in terms of the range of 
services available to the community, their physical presence and their 
environmental impact. In their totality they have the potential to change the 
face of the Borough and the Council has the opportunity to exploit their 
potential in the best interests of the residents, the business community and 
other stakeholders.  
 
The approach to development is intended to be consistent with emerging 
themes in the Local Development Framework but clearly cannot await its 
adoption. Most if not all of these sites will be included in the ‘Delivering 
Development’ Development Plan Document which will provide further 
opportunity for public engagement. 
 
The main purpose of this report is make Members and Advisors aware of 
the Panel’s workload and its potential impact. Officers will be preparing a 
monitoring framework which will outline progress and reporting this 
regularly with updates  and with specific reports on individual projects. 
Inevitably some projects have reached a much more advanced stage than 
others and it is not the intention to revisit decisions that have already been 
made.  
 
Harrow Town Centre  
 
Harrow on the Hill station 
This site, identified as a proposal site in the UDP, has the potential to 
change the image and functioning of the Town Centre. The Planning Brief 
for this site was adopted by the council in July 2005, with the objective of 
creating a step change in public transport accessibility by reproviding bus 
and train facilities and improving the user experience.   
 
 

6



 

 

3
 
To achieve this will require value to be created, mainly through residential 
development, but it also provides for a new Harrow College, improved 
usable and attractive public spaces and pedestrian links across the railway.  
 
 
The College need to have a planning permission in place by November this 
year to meet their programme to be on site by May 2008 with completion by 
May 2010. 
 
This is a complex project involving a number of agencies, landowners and 
developers. On the south side of the railway, Harrow College has now had 
funding approval for complete re-provision of its buildings which will involve 
development in the order of 25000 sq metres of building at a cost of £90m. 
Officers are working with the college to ensure that their proposals integrate 
with public space provision and residential development on the south side 
and with the Station/public transport proposals. On the north side of the 
railway work is continuing with the 2 major landowners Quintains and 
Dandara to establish how a comprehensive development could achieve the 
transport objectives. The results of this work should be available during 
February. 
 
Public Realm and Access Strategy 
A consultants Brief for this work was agreed by the then Town Centre Panel 
in December 2005 and following a competitive selection process Urban 
Initiatives were appointed to undertake this work in August 2006. Work has 
been continuing since that time, complicated and delayed because of hold-
ups in the preparation of the Town Centre Access Strategy which has now 
been added to Urban Initiatives commission. The strategies will be the 
subject of consultation with key stakeholders in February/March with a 
wider public consultation later in the year. 
 
The Council’s draft Capital programme as agreed by Cabinet on the 14 
December 2006 includes a combined provision for ‘Strategic Development’ 
for £1.5m in 2007/8, £3.2m in 2008/9 and £4m in 2009/10.  A significant 
element of this provision will be to implement aspects of the public realm 
strategy throughout the Town Centre. Other elements will be implemented 
with development proposals as they occur, and Officers will be exploring 
other funding opportunities such as TfL grant. 
 
 
 
 

7



 

 

4
 
Sites in Gayton Rd 
The Cabinet in December 2006 agreed in principle to pursue the 
development of Gayton Road car park, Gayton road library and the Sonia 
Court which lies between the two Council owned sites for a Library, 
Performance and Exhibition Centre, new public car park and residential 
development with Fairview Estates who have an interest in the Sonia Court 
site.  On the basis of proposals submitted by Fairview, the library/exhibition 
and performance space building envelope will be provided at no cost, 
together with the car park.  
 
Officers are in discussion with Fairview in respect of the detailed proposals 
and possible timescales, with a view to start on site in 2008. 
 
Both the Town Centre Strategy and the Cultural Strategy identified the lack 
of cultural and leisure facilities in the Town Centre as having a significant 
impact on its ability to provide the full range of functions and facilities 
expected of a Metropolitan Centre.  This proposal has the potential to 
remedy this deficiency. 
 
Greenhill Road car park 
The December cabinet also authorised the disposal and exchange of land 
at this site, the small car park north of Greenhill Way, to facilitate the 
rationalisation of the parking arrangements for the office development at the 
corner of Greenhill way and Station Rd and the creation of a development 
site suitable for small scale residential development. This is being 
implemented and should be completed this year. 
 
Travis Perkins Site, Pinner Road. 
Transport for London the owners of this site have marketed it and selected 
a preferred developer. 
 
Greenhill Way Car Park 
Greenhill way car park represents a major development opportunity in the 
Town Centre. Previous attempts to secure development have not 
proceeded as developers have not delivered the gains promised. The 
opportunity to link development with Debenhams to increase the retail offer 
will be further explored but this is not seen as a high priority against the 
other projects being progressed at the current time.  The Urban Initiatives 
work will help inform how best to take this site and Land at Havelock Place 
(see below) forward. 
 
 

8



 

 

5
 
Havelock Place and Adj land  
Havelock place and the area of the St Anns Service yard is identified as a 
development site in the UDP and the Town Centre Strategy. It presents an 
opportunity for mixed use development which can improve the retail offer 
and provide a new pedestrian route through form College Rd to St Anns Rd, 
an objective identified in the Town Centre Strategy. This is not being  
actively pursued at the present time.   
 
Wealdstone 
 
Re-opening Wealdstone High St 
Re-opening Wealdstone High Street is being pursued with the support of 
Accord MP and subject to agreement from TfL will be commenced this year. 
This is seen as a critical first step in regenerating Wealdstone. Public 
Realm enhancements to complement the re-opening are being considered 
against the funding constraints. The Council’s strategic partner Accord MP 
has produced ideas for the wider regeneration of the area. These ideas are 
under consideration as to how to take them forward.  
 
Potential development Opportunities 
There are a number of potential development sites within the Wealdstone 
area which could contribute towards regeneration objectives. Some of these 
involve Council owned land in whole or in part and these will be examined 
in more detail over the course of the year to see what opportunities there 
are for early release and development. 
 
Station Road including Civic Centre Site  
 
Station Road between the Town Centre and Wealdstone is a strategic 
artery for the Borough, both as a major communications route through the 
Borough and the link between two main commercial centres. Its physical 
appearance and the adjoining land uses do not reflect either its significance 
or its potential. The Council’s strategic partner Accord MP has been looking 
at ideas for how this corridor could be improved. 
 
 Options for the Council to rationalise its accommodation and either 
consolidate within the existing site or relocate are being examined. The first 
stage of reviewing the council’s requirements in the light of organisational 
and service delivery changes is underway and will be reported to members 
in March this year.  
 
 

9



 

 

6
 
The Civic Centre sits on a site of approx 10 acres (4Ha) and development 
options which will support the Council’s planning  and corporate objectives 
will be a key element of further discussion. These will need to be set within 
the context of the future of Station Road.  
 
Kodak 
 
The rationalisation of the Kodak site is proceeding with building demolition 
and reorganising of the Kodak manufacturing base. This will result in the 
release for development of approximately 8 acres (3.5Ha) of land adjoining 
Headstone Drive.  Negotiations between the Council and Kodak for the 
purchase of some or all of this land stalled in the autumn of 2006.  
 
It offers the potential for redevelopment to provide employment generation 
which would assist in the regeneration of Wealdstone, including the 
possible use of retained buildings for an Incubator Centre for start up 
businesses, an important element in the emerging economic development 
strategy. 
 
Leisure Centre/Driving Centre/Byron Recreation Ground 
 
The former driving centre site adjacent to the Leisure Centre has been 
vacant for some time and represents a major development opportunity. The 
existing Leisure Centre, owned by the Council but run under contract by 
Leisure Connections, is no longer ‘fit for purpose’ in terms of the facilities it 
provides or the condition and efficiency of the building.  Preliminary 
discussions have been held with Leisure Connections about the re-
provisioning of the Leisure Centre. This would need to be set within an 
overall masterplan for the whole site including the Driving Centre and car 
park, and which would integrate with and improve Byron Recreation 
Ground.  Taking this forward will require a combination of project 
development and masterplanning work which will require external 
resources, some of which could potentially funded through Leisure 
Connections.   
 
Hatch End Arts and Leisure inc Bannister playing Fields 
 
The area of land currently occupied by the Harrow Arts Centre, Hatch End 
Library, the swimming pool and education playing fields offers scope for 
expanded and improved leisure provision which could potentially involve 
relocation of facilities from Bannister Playing Fields.  Little work has be 
undertaken on this site to date but Leisure Connections who manage both 

10



 

 

7
Bannister and the Hatch End Pool are reviewing options for leisure 
provision which would include a replacement pool. Opportunities for further 
development which would help fund leisure/cultural facilities will also need 
to be explored. 
 
Stanmore District Centre incl the Anmer Lodge site and adjacent land 
 
The current users at Anmer lodge are to be relocated by early 2008. The 
lodge site together with adjoining surface level car parking offers the 
opportunity for development which could consolidate the vitality and viability  
of Stanmore District Centre including improved car parking. Officers will be 
examining the opportunities this presents with a view to having proposals 
ready for when the site becomes available. This work will be complement 
the initiatives for Harrow Town Centre and Wealdstone in improving centres 
across the Borough. 
 
Prince Edward Playing Fields 
 
Following Cabinet agreement in principle to develop the playing fields 
Barnet Football Club has submitted a planning application for the 
completion of the works started in 2005 together with some amendments 
and additions. Should the application be successful development should 
proceed in time for the beginning of the next football season. It is intended 
that the facilities will be used by Wealdstone FC and by Barnet for training 
and development. An integral part of the agreement will be the development 
of youth and community programmes.  
 
 William Ellis Playing Fields 
 
The Cabinet has agreed in principle to the disposal of a part of the William 
Ellis Playing Fields site for the proposed Hindu School, subject to planning 
permission. The Schools Organisational Committee on the 16th January 
unanimously supported this proposal. The promoters of the School, the I-
Foundation, will be preparing a planning application which will include 
proposals to consolidate and improve facilities for Belmont Football Club on 
the remainder of the site.   
 
Wood farm 
 
This important green belt site is in the freehold ownership of the Council but 
subject to leases to Stanmore Dairies, now wholly owned by CP Holdings.  
 
 

11



 

 

8
 
The Cabinet has agreed that should a planning permission be granted it will 
negotiate with CP holdings for the freehold sale of a small part of the site in 
exchange for the termination of the leases on the remainder and their re-
instatement as an integral part of Stanmore Country Park. CP Holdings 
have a planning application lodged but this is not currently being 
progressed pending further survey work on the ecological issues.   
 
Bentley Priory 
 
Bentley Priory is to be vacated by the RAF early in 2008. It is a significant 
site in many ways, not least the Grade II* listed building with its historical 
associations with the Battle of Britain and The RAF. The Council has 
commissioned a Supplementary Planning Document to guide its 
development when released. This will be the subject of extensive 
consultation in the near future and is programmed for adoption by the 
Council in the Autumn.  
     
 
SECTION 3 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE 
 
   
Chief Finance Officer  Name:… …Sheela Thakrar 
    

Date            19th January 2007          
   
Monitoring Officer  Name: ……Adekunle Amisu 
   

Date: ……  19th January 2007.. 
 
 
SECTION 4 - CONTACT DETAILS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
Contact:  Graham Jones, Director of Planning Services 0208 420 9317 
 

 
Background Papers:  
  
 
1. Consultation  No 

2. Corporate Priorities  Yes 

3. Manifesto Pledge Reference Number A2, B1, C1, D4, F 

 

12


	Agenda
	7 Renaming of the Panel and revised Terms of Reference
	11 Public Realm Strategy
	12 Priorities and Progress 2007

